
Integrated Summary of Grievances I–V Submitted to the California Avocado Commission Board
Kachuck Enterprises / American Avocado Farmers
Summary Document

Overview
This integrated summary consolidates five formal grievances submitted to the California Avocado Commission (CAC) between 2024–2025. Together, these grievances allege systemic governance failures, conflicts of interest, election‑integrity breakdowns, statutory noncompliance, and a persistent refusal by the Commission to protect California growers from economic, criminal, and biosecurity threats associated with the foreign avocado import pipeline.
The grievances form a coherent, escalating record demonstrating that the CAC is not fulfilling its statutory mandate to represent, protect, and advocate for California’s assessment‑paying producers.

I. Grievance One — Conflicts of Interest, Eligibility Failures, and Compromised Board Composition
Core Issue
The CAC has allowed individuals with direct financial, familial, or contractual ties to the avocado import pipeline to serve in producer seats, vote on import‑related matters, and participate in elections. Recent self‑recusals by multiple Directors on a Section 232 tariff‑support vote confirm the existence of unmanaged conflicts.
Key Failures
· Directors with importer/handler ties have participated in votes directly affecting the import pipeline.
· Their self‑recusal on a national‑security trade matter implicitly invalidates their prior votes on similar issues.
· CAC leadership incorrectly claimed that eligibility reforms require legislative action, despite clear statutory authority allowing administrative correction.
· The 2025 election is compromised unless eligibility is re‑established.
Implications
The legitimacy of CAC governance and elections is in question. Conflicted individuals may have shaped policy to the detriment of California growers.

II. Grievance Two — Improper Indemnification for Misconduct
Core Issue
The CAC considered expanding indemnification to cover legal fees for Directors and staff even when they are later found to have violated bylaws, made false conflict‑of‑interest declarations, or engaged in willful misconduct.
Key Failures
· Proposed indemnification shields individuals who knowingly violate Commission rules.
· It incentivizes unethical behavior and protects importer‑aligned Directors.
· It misuses grower assessment dollars to defend misconduct.
Implications
This represents a breakdown of fiduciary responsibility and undermines accountability mechanisms essential to public‑agency governance.

III. Grievance Three — Failure to Validate Producer Identity and Ensure Election Integrity
Core Issue
The CAC has failed to verify who is a lawful “producer,” who is entitled to vote, and how ballots are issued. This failure compromises the integrity of past and current elections.
Key Failures
· CAC definitions of “producer” and “causes to produce” are being misapplied, allowing non‑growers (employees, managers, contractors) to vote or hold producer seats.
· No verification of legal ownership for ballot recipients.
· No audit of ballot issuance, including duplicate ballots for multi‑grove owners.
· No oversight of potential proxy‑like voting practices prohibited by statute.
· Repeated requests for a third‑party audit have been ignored.
Implications
The Commission cannot certify that its Board is lawfully constituted. Election outcomes may not reflect the will of legitimate assessment‑paying growers.

IV. Grievance Four — Failure to Address Criminal, Ethical, and Trade Risks in the Import Pipeline
Core Issue
The CAC has ignored credible evidence of cartel involvement, corruption, environmental destruction, money laundering, human‑rights abuses, and unfair trade practices in the Mexican avocado supply chain.
Key Failures
· No investigation or condemnation of documented criminal and unethical practices.
· No referral of evidence to USDA, DOJ, USTR, or law enforcement.
· No pursuit of a Hass Avocado Board (HAB) referendum despite repeated petitions.
· Directors with importer ties appear to be suppressing action.
· U.S. companies may face liability under FCPA, RICO, and 18 U.S.C. § 2339B.
Implications
CAC’s inaction exposes California growers to existential economic harm and exposes U.S. entities to potential criminal liability.

V. Grievance Five — Failure to Comply with the California Public Records Act (CPRA)
Core Issue
The CAC has refused to comply with a lawful CPRA request submitted June 2024, violating California Government Code §§ 7920–7931.
Requested Records Include
· Full CAC member directory
· Payroll data for CAC staff
· Communications regarding conflicts of interest, HAB referendum, trade matters, and prior grievances
· Any audits of membership rolls or ballot issuance
Key Failures
· CAC incorrectly claims “quasi‑public” status to avoid disclosure.
· CPRA exemptions do not apply to the requested records.
· Withholding information prevents growers from communicating and evaluating CAC governance.
Implications
The refusal to disclose public records obstructs oversight, undermines transparency, and may indicate intentional suppression of information relevant to conflicts of interest and election integrity.

Integrated Assessment
Across all five grievances, a consistent pattern emerges:
1. Conflicted Governance
Importer‑aligned individuals influence decisions affecting domestic growers.
2. Compromised Elections
Ballot eligibility is unverified, and the Commission cannot certify the legitimacy of its own Board.
3. Shielding Misconduct
Indemnification proposals and CPRA noncompliance protect conflicted actors from scrutiny.
4. Failure to Protect California Growers
CAC has not acted on cartel‑linked supply chain risks, dumping, or unfair trade practices.
5. Systemic Transparency Failures
The Commission withholds information that growers are legally entitled to.
6. Persistent Procedural Delay
Across all grievances, CAC delays or refuses action, despite clear statutory authority.

Conclusion
The grievances collectively demonstrate that the California Avocado Commission is failing in its statutory duties to protect, represent, and advocate for California’s assessment‑paying producers. The issues raised are not isolated; they form a systemic pattern of governance breakdown, conflicts of interest, compromised elections, and refusal to comply with transparency laws.
Corrective action is necessary to restore trust, ensure lawful governance, and protect the economic and biosecurity interests of California’s avocado industry.

